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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN]} PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Waverley is a large, rambling farmhouse picturesquely sited on a terraced knoll
overlooking a landscaped pond and route 626, the scenic country road between
Middleburg and The Plains, Virginia, The house began as a one-story stone cottage
erected in the late 18th century. The exterior end chimney of this dwelling survives
under the left side of the portico, with its stack projecting up through the portico roof
and between the third-story windows. The stuccoing of the walls makes it nearly
impossible to gain much of an idea of the original configuration of this building.

Ii The chimney wall and at least portions of the other walls were incorporated into the
present house around 1830, This enlargement resulted in a single-pile, center-hall,
: two-story dwelling, a typical example of an I-house, save for the early chimney

| against the facade. The ends of the house were ornamented with stepped parapets

| which survive.

In the 1850s the house underwent another remodeling and enlargement. At this
time a long, two-story rear ell was either added or enlarged to its present form.
This ell contains the present dining room which retains its original Federal mantel
and other early woodwork. Behind the dining room is the kitchen and other service
areas, all of which have been thoroughly modernized. The exterior of the ell was
. ornamented with scrolled bargeboards and scalloped eaves, following the fashion of
the Gothic Revival. A two-level wooden gallery was erected in the angle between
the main house and the ell and was extended to its present length in the last remodeling.
Also dating from the 1850s remodeling is the two-story portico across the facade.
This portico consists of six square piers supporting a flat roof with a plain wooden
parapet. A small balcony is presently at.the center bay under the portico; originally
the balcony may have been somewhat longer.

The house stood abandoned and deteriorating in 1940 when it was acquired by
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas Furness, who undertook an extensive renovation, The
renovation was directed by the fashionable Chicago architect David Adler, best
known for his elegant residential designs. Adler preserved the early character of
the house but modernized it into a well-appointed country seat. His principal
alteration was the raising of the roof for the installation of third-story bedrooms.
This work resulted in a shallow third story above the portico and the appearance of
the house having a flat roof. He also redesigned the drawing room end wall, adding
the present mantel and bookcases. In the dining room he added the paneled over-
mantel. A freer hand was exercised on the upper floors in order to accommodate bath-
rooms, closets, and other conveniences. The present buff color of the exterior was
also carefully chosen by Adler and has been maintained by Mrs. Furness.

The house is surrounded by handsome, well-maintained gardens, somewhat formal
in character, all of which were installed by the present owner. A small courtyard

(See Continuation Sheet #1)
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of boxwood beds in the rear is framed on the north by a pergola and summerhouse.
The slope leading down to the pond in front of the house has been gently terraced
using fieldstone retaining walls,

Boundary Justification:

The boundaries incorporate the house and immediate grounds, property protected
by an easement held by the Virginia Historic L.andmarks Commission. The remaining
Waverleyproperty is protected by an easement held by the Virginia Outdoors
Foundation.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Waverley is a building of architectural value not because it possesses a purity
of style, but because it has grown and evolved over a long period and has thus
acquired an appearance that only age can give. In its present form, it is perhaps
a more informative historical artifact than a house that has remained in its original
state, as it reflects changing architectural modes of the region as well as the
changing tastes and needs of its occupants.

The core of Waverley is a late 18th-century stone cottage, probably erected after
1766 when the land was bought by Charles Chinn. Although only the exterior end
chimney and portions of the walls remain, it seems likely that this oldest section
was a typical example of the simple vernacular farmhouses erected by the early
settlers of the region. Around 1801 the property was acquired by William Hale who
died in 1822, leaving the 253-acre tract on which the house stood to his daughter
Francis [sic] P. Hale. Following her death in 1833, Francis Hale's estate is shown
in the Fauquier County tax records as including 253 acres with $800 worth of buildings.
The tax records of 1829 placed no value on the stone cottage, so it can be assumed
that Francis Hale made significant enlargements to it between 1829 and 1833. The
result of this effort was a two-story, five-bay structure with stepped-parapet gables
which, except for the fact that it encased a small, earlier dwelling, was a fairly
standard example of an J-house, the most common vernacular house form of early -
19th-century Virginia.

In 1838 Francis Hale's estate was sold to John W. Patterson, who owned the house
without making significant improvements until 1854 when the tax on the buildings was
increased from $600 to $2000. This jump in value may have been the result of
acquiring additional buildings with the purchase of adjacent land, However, it probably
also reflects a remodeling of the original house. The most conspicuous features that
date from this period are the hexastyle portico across the front and a large rear ell
with its Gothic-style bargeboards and scroll-sawn eaves., These additions gave the
formerly plain house a more stylish aspect reflecting the popularity of the revivalist
trends in domestic architecture during the antebellum period.

{See Continuation Sheet #2)
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The house remained essentially as Patterson had it until the 1940s when, after
being allowed to fall into a state of deterioration, it was bought by Mr. and Mrs.
Thomas Furness. By that time the northern Virginia countryside, especially that
around Middleburg, had achieved world renown for its scenic beauty and as a
fashionable place to own a country estate., Like the many people of means who
moved to the area in the 1930s and '40s, Mr. and Mrs. Furness sought an old country
house to restore and thus chose Waverley. With the assistance of the Chicago architect
David Adler, the Furnesses remodeled Waverley into a commeodious, if stylish, rural
seat. The interior of the house and its prettily landscaped gardens remain basically
an expression of the refined and somewhat eclectic taste of the Furnesses,

Waverley is also the most conspicuous early house on the Halfway Road (route 626),
the scenic road between Middleburg and The Plains, Virginia. This road and the
beautiful countryside that surrounds it have been the focal point of much conservation
activity in recent years. Many of the farms, including Waverley, are protected by
easements held by the Virginia Outdoors Foundation. The house at Waverley is
protected by a historic preservation easement granted to the Historic Landmarks
Commission in 1977,

CL/MTP
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